City of Lawrence Sustainability Advisory Board (SAB) January 14, 2009 (5:30 PM) Meeting Minutes

MEMBERS PRESENT:	Chris Cobb, Dickie Heckler, Sarah Hill-Nelson, Paul Dietz, Daniel Poull, Laura Routh, Brian Sifton, Simran Sethi, Cindy Strecker
MEMBERS ABSENT:	Matt Lehrman
STAFF PRESENT:	Tammy Bennett, Kathy Richardson
GUESTS PRESENT:	
PUBLIC PRESENT:	Michael Almon, Aron Cromwell

Call Meeting to Order (Daniel Poull, Chairperson) Take Roll Call to Determine Quorum of Members

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES

Motion and second to approve the December 10, 2008 minutes (Heckler/Lehrman). Vote: Motion was passed unanimously.

SAB Election of Nominated Candidate for President, Vice President, and Secretary

Elections for SAB nominated candidates took place.

Motion to elect Laura Routh for secretary (Poull). Vote: Motion was passed unanimously.Motion to elect Sarah Hill-Nelson for vice-president (Poull). Vote: Motion was passed unanimously.

Motion to elect Daniel Poull for president (Poull). Vote: Motion was passed unanimously.

Presentation by Marilyn Hull, Douglas County Community Foundation

Sarah Hill-Nelson introduced Marilyn Hull, program officer of the Douglas County Community Foundation (DCCF). Marilyn Hull presented information regarding a wellness initiative under way in the Lawrence community. It is specifically targeting nutrition and physical activity. DCCF received a grant from the Kansas Health Foundation for this wellness initiative. Marilyn provided a hand out, Nutrition and Physical Activity Initiative Fact Sheet (see attached). The wellness initiative ties in with sustainability as it relates to local foods systems as well as transportation (i.e. riding bikes or walking).

Marilyn Hull discussed her group's initial conversations regarding the possibility of hosting a town hall meeting for health issues. Dan Simons from the World Company who is on the DCCF steering committee brought up the idea of having a town hall meeting much like the Sustainability Town Hall held in Lawrence a couple years ago. The steering committee is working on drafting a community plan and will ask for community feedback.

SAB asked how they could help with this initiative. Marilyn commented that both groups can help each other. She mentioned that it would be important to find out how these health issues can be tied with the green movement.

Sarah Hill-Nelson explained her idea of having a one week Sustainability event in Lawrence (one day focused on local foods, another day focused on water, another on transportation, etc.) She wondered if the DCCF grant could be used for an event like that. It would be a way to join several sustainability issues into one event.

Marilyn Hull informed the board that DCCF would consider an event as a tool to increase visibility. For example, an event could be setting a Guinness record for the largest community work out (i.e. Red Dog host a work out in Lawrence). This would get the media's attention and would be an opportunity to roll out some of the activities that DCCF is planning. Marilyn also informed SAB that 2/3 of their Kansas Health Foundation grant is going back out to organizations as "mini" grants to address aspects of nutrition and physical activity.

Laura Routh mentioned two behavior changes that are both to get healthy and reduce the impact on the environment: using reusable water bottles and biking to work. Simran Sethi commented that she looks forward to working with DCCF because sustainability also has a "people" component; sustainability is not just a "green" component.

Marilyn Hull mentioned that DCCF will most probably put out an RFP to invite all organizations interested in applying for these "mini" grants. It will be a 3 year project. Total grant money is approximately \$300,000 of which 2/3 will be available for community grants and 1/3 will be to cover DCCF staff salaries and expenses. Grants awarded will be on average \$10,000 to \$15,000. SAB asked what the qualifications for an organization applying are. DCCF normally only awards grants to 501 c3 organizations but this wellness grant may have more flexibility. Could a group like SAB qualify for this grant? Marilyn gave no definitive answer but did say it could probably work if the group has an organization that it is a part of (i.e. City Government for SAB) to be is the fiscal agent for the funds but then the decision making could be a larger coalition group like SAB.

Marilyn Hull will keep Sarah Hill-Nelson updated on the DCCF grants and projects.

Lawrence Energy Conservation Fair (LECF)

Sarah Hill-Nelson summarized last SAB meeting's LECF conversation. She mentioned SAB had concerns about the LECF viability and SAB suggested uniting the Earth Day and LECF events.

SAB asked Kathy Richardson to discuss the staff position on the LECF. Kathy reported that she talked to WRR staff as well as Bob Yoos, Tammy Bennett and Lisa Patterson throughout the last month to get their perspectives on the LECF. One thing that was agreed by all staff is that if any major changes need to be made to LECF these changes would be best suited for 2010 and not 2009 so that there is adequate time for planning. Combining the Earth Day and LECF events would be difficult for 2009 since Earth Day is right around the corner in April. Kathy mentioned that staff also agreed that the LECF activities need to be back to a one day event and not spread out throughout the week like in 2008. In addition, staff agreed that a venue change for LECF would be good and suggested the Lawrence Community Building.

Kathy also reported that she spoke to Steve Hughes, a participant of LECF since its inception. He thought attendance for the 2008 LECF was good and he was content with event. Steve Hughes mentioned that the LECF survey results also showed many positive responses. Aron Cromwell, a 2008 LECF exhibitor, informed SAB that he thought the attendance at LECF was not good. He said he spoke with vendors who are questioning their participation in 2009. Aron Cromwell added that he would participate in LECF again this year because he has always participated in this City event but suggested that there be a venue change. He would like to see LECF moved back to the DG CO Fairgrounds but understands that the Fairgrounds facilities are normally reserved for years.

Daniel Poull stated that if SAB wants to ramp up the energy of LECF, then SAB will need to ramp up their participation too.

There was discussion on broadening the LECF to a Sustainability Fair to increase attendance.

Michael Almon, another 2008 LECF exhibitor, agreed with Aron Cromwell's comments and said location is his big concern. He had hopes that when LECF was moved to Free State High School from the DG CO Fairgrounds that it would be reaching a demographic that had not been reached before but it does not seem like it has worked out. Michael Almon thinks a more central location for LECF would be good. He also mentioned that he thinks there are significant differences between the Earth Day and LECF events. He said Earth Day has an emphasis on community groups, school groups, and not-for-profit groups. The Earth Day is a celebration and people come down to have a fun day. LECF is a formal fair were professional vendors are trying to sell their services or products.

There was discussion on the possibility of collaborating with the Lawrence Home Builders Association to create an energy conservation vendor area in their annual Home Show. Simran Sethi stated that SAB will need to confirm who it is they want their target audience to be. If SAB were to decide to collapse the LECF with the Home Show, then the target audience would be home owners and not on the college community, renters, etc.

Laura Routh suggested researching Energy Fairs in other communities. The following SAB members volunteered to be on the LECF subcommittee: Dickie Heckler, Brian Sifton, Laura Routh and Daniel Poull. The LECF subcommittee will establish a meeting schedule and meet at Dickie Heckler's house. The LECF subcommittee will then bring back a proposal to SAB.

Earth Day Celebration

Kathy Richardson reported that the 2009 Earth Day Celebration will be held on Saturday, April 18th at South Park.

The following SAB members volunteered to help with Earth Day: Dickie Heckler, Brian Sifton, Chris Cobb, Paul Dietz (and kids), Sarah Hill-Nelson, and Daniel Poull.

Horizon 2020 Environmental Chapter

Laura Routh passed around the outline of the Horizon 2020 Environmental Chapter and informed SAB that she had contacted Amy Brown, the City's Long-Range Planner. Laura provided the following information: SAB is a stakeholder of the Horizon 2020 Environmental Chapter. SAB members can sign up on the City website to receive email updates regarding Horizon 2020. Currently the City is hosting educational meetings for stakeholders to provide suggestions on specific community goals and policies for Horizon 2020. The Horizon 2020 draft will be completed by April or May and will be reviewed over the summer.

ACTION: Daniel Poull (and/or Brian Sifton) will email Amy Brown to get on the invitation list to the Energy Conservation/Waste Reduction/Sustainability meeting.

ACTION: Laura Routh will email SAB her notes from her conversation with Amy Brown.

Burroughs Creek Trail Update

Dickie Heckler talked to David Cronin, City's Project Engineer. The City is in the process of requesting bids for the Burroughs Creek Trial project. The project will start in July and be completed by the Fall.

Climate Protection Task Force (CPTF) Update

Simran Sethi thanked Sarah Hill-Nelson and Brian Sifton for being instrumental in helping put the pieces (i.e. workgroup recommendations) together for the CPTF's report. Simran reported that CPTF members will meet in February to review the draft report and the final report will be presented to the City Commission in March or April.

Peak Oil Task Force Update

Paul Dietz reported that the first Peak Oil Task Force meeting is set for January 20th at 4:30 pm at the City Commission room. The meeting is open to the public.

Waste Reduction & Recycling Report

Kathy Richardson reported that the recycling markets are at a steady low since the sharp decline last December (cardboard \$15-20/ton, newspaper \$25/ton, mixed paper \$0-5/ton and office paper \$90/ton). The City has been shipping materials through the usual brokers and is not having to store recyclables on site. SAB asked if the recycling markets have had a structural impact on the WRR budget and if it is imperiling retention of staff or programs. Tammy Bennett explained that the City has always budgeted the recycling revenue very conservatively because of the volatility of the market.

Kathy reported program/facility changes for 2009:

- The City is installing a new security gate system at the Compost Facility. The gate will require a programmed fob for entry. This year lawnscape companies will need to register with WRR and pay a \$25 usage fee per fob.
- The City's finished compost will be sold this year instead of given away. The cost is similar to the mulch sale at \$10 per truck/bucket load.

Guest comments and miscellaneous

Daniel Poull announced that Toni Wheeler, the City's Legal Director, will be presenting at the next SAB meeting to discuss open meetings.

Meeting adjourned 7:10 pm.

Next meeting: February 11, 2009 at 5:30 pm.

Attachments:

- DCCF Nutrition and Physical Activity Initiative Fact Sheet
- WRR Report

Douglas County Nutrition and Physical Activity (N&PA) Initiative Fact Sheet

What is the Douglas County N&PA Initiative?

A community initiative focused on improving everyday social and physical environments to make it easier for people to get more active and eat healthier.

Who is behind it?

- The Kansas Health Foundation of Wichita is providing seed money over 3 years.
- The Douglas County Community Foundation received the grant, is facilitating community planning, and will eventually disburse some of the KHF grant funds to implement aspects of the community plan.
- A Steering Committee of 16 local agency, business, education and recreation leaders will create a community action plan with input from the public.

What is the main focus?

Creating community-level and organization-level changes that support individuals' efforts to move more and eat healthier.

Why is this important?

It is easier for people to succeed in making permanent lifestyle changes if the places they go and the people they are around support healthy behaviors.

Aren't we already doing this?

Yes, to some extent. Schools are making positive changes. A few employers have started wellness programs. We have markets where people can get locally-grown and locally-made nutritious foods. But we can do more, community- wide.

What is the timetable?

The steering committee is currently drafting a plan of action. In the spring of 2009, community members will have opportunities to comment and offer input before the plan is finalized. We expect to begin making grants to support aspects of the plan later in 2009. Grantmaking and evaluation will continue through mid-2011.

How can I stay informed?

Get on our e-mail list by contacting Marilyn Hull at <u>marilynhull@dccfoundation.org</u> or 843-8727.

Facts on Obesity

According to the U.S. Surgeon General, obesity is the single greatest public health threat to the nation. In fact, poor nutrition and lack of physical activity are the second leading preventable causes of death in the U.S.

While Douglas County is among the leaner communities in Kansas, with 45% of adults being at a healthy weight, the prevalence of overweight and obesity is rising in concert with national rates, putting a large portion of the local population at risk for cardiovascular disease, diabetes, cancer, hypertension and asthma.

About the Funding Partners

The Kansas Health Foundation is a private philanthropy dedicated to improving the health of all Kansans. For more information about the Kansas Health Foundation, visit www.kansashealth.org.

The Douglas County Community Foundation connects the diverse citizens and communities of Douglas County through charitable action. Our mission is to enrich the quality of life in the communities of Douglas County by:

- Building philanthropic resources and relationships
- Providing attractive options for donors to make philanthropic contributions
- Being a catalyst for the betterment of the lives of the citizens of Douglas County For more information, visit www.dccfoundation.org.

Steering Committee Members

Janice Early-Weas, Lawrence Memorial Hospital Cindy Johnson, TherapyWorks Nikki King, Health Care Access Clinic Susan Krumm, K-State Research and Extension-Douglas County Janelle Martin, Community Health Improvement Project Nancy O'Connor, The Community Mercantile Wayne Osness, KU Emeritus Professor of Health, Sport and Exercise Sciences Dan Partridge, Lawrence-Douglas County Health Department Bruce Passman, Lawrence Public Schools Dan Simons, The World Company Roger Steinbrock, Lawrence Parks and Recreation

Douglas County Community Foundation Chip Blaser, Executive Director Marilyn Hull, Program Officer Monte Johnson, Board Member Mike McGrew, Board Member Vickie Otten, Board Member



Waste Reduction and Recycling Division Report for the Sustainability Advisory Board (01/14/09)

FIBERS REPORT

OLD CORRUGATED CONTAINERS (OC	<u>(C)</u>							
Cardboard	Tons	Revenue						
Current YTD	1255.94	\$134,257.24						
Prior YTD	1061.29	\$126,872.90						
Avg. Price/ton thru Dec 2008: \$	6106.90	Avg. Price/ton thru Dec 2007: \$119						
OLD NEWSPAPERS (ONP)								
Newspaper	Tons	Revenue						
Current YTD	635.65	\$77,239.66						
Prior YTD	865.24	\$86,887.42						
Avg. Price/ton thru Dec 2008: \$	5121.51	Avg. Price/ton thru Dec 2007: \$100.42						
OFFICE WASTE PAPER (SOP)	-	Devenue						
Sorted Office Paper	Tons	Revenue						
Current YTD	39.32	\$8,135.30						
Prior YTD	33.21	\$5,532.94						
Avg. Price/ton thru Dec 2008: \$	206.90	Avg. Price/ton thru Dec 2007: \$166						
MIXED WASTE PAPER (MIX)	Topo	Devenue						
	Tons	Revenue						
Current YTD	186.23	\$14,712.01						
Prior YTD	49.14	\$4,289.19						
Avg. Price/ton thru Dec 2008: \$	579.00	Avg. Price/ton thru Dec 2007:	\$87.29					

TOTAL	YTD	TONS	Revenue
		2111.14	\$234,344.21
Prior YTD		2009.50	\$223,623.07

NOTES:

Current (January) prices are very low (15-20/ton) for cardboard and 5/ton for Mixed paper. There is still good movement on the Newspaper (we're likely receiving 25/ton this month) and the Cardboard, and we have been allowed to ship $\frac{1}{2}$ load of Mixed Paper thus far this year.

Month	HHW Drop-Offs	Battery Bags in Mail	Appt No Show	Home- bound	Saturday Collection	Abandoned Waste	Orphan Waste	SQG Inventory	SQG Drop-off	Product Reuse Appt
January	119	3	12	0	0	1	0	10	6	10
February	82	2	10	0	0	0	0	8	8	11
March	146	1	7	0	0	2	0	8	7	14
April	248	5	25	1	24	7	0	12	14	56
May	225	4	9	0	40	2	0	15	15	57
June	353	6	28	0	30	3	0	9	9	56
July	295	8	18	0	30	5	0	14	9	76
August	269	2	16	0	23	4	0	20	19	49
September	205	0	17	2	15	3	0	8	9	79
October	202	0	23	0	20	1	0	10	11	60
November	183	6	10	0	0	2	0	3	3	41
December	126	4	8	0	0	1	0	3	4	9
TOTAL	2453	41	183	3	182	31	0	120	114	518

HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE (HHW) PROGRAM REPORT

COMPOST PROGRAM

The last day in 2008 for residential yard waste collection was Monday, December 22nd. Yard waste collection will resume in March 2009. The Christmas Tree-Cycling program collected live cut trees on Monday, January 5th and Monday, January 12th for reuse as wildlife habitat.

YARD TRIMMINGS COLLECTION: YEAR TO DATE

	Jan	Feb	March	April	Мау	June	July	August	Sept	Oct	Nov	Dec	2008 TOTAL
Total Tons collected curbside	NA	NA	1,035.71	1,575.54	1,375.76	1,491.3	695.7	576.49	756.54	912.5	2,362.43	462.18	11,244.15
Commercial YW received	0.8	0.7	124.1	122.1	151.7	132.8	64.3	72.3	141.3	150.5	129.7	22	1,116
Other YW received (Christmas Trees)	20.46 (1716 trees)	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	20.46
Total tons this month	21.26	0.7	1,159.81	1,697.64	1,527.46	1,624.1	760.0	648.79	897.84	1,063	2,492.13	484.18	12,380.61
Average Preferred Container Compliance	NA	NA	97.6%	99%	99.4%	99.4%	99.6%	99.2%	99.5%	99.5%	98.8%	98.9%	99.1%